
COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
JANUARY 13, 2014 

 
 

 
Page 1 - Council Meeting Minutes, January 13, 2014 

0:00 DATE  COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL, CITY OF WOODBURN, COUNTY OF 
MARION, STATE OF OREGON, JANUARY 13, 2014 

 
CONVENED   The meeting convened at 7:10 p.m. with Mayor Figley presiding.  
 

 ROLL CALL 
Mayor Figley   Present 
Councilor Cox  Present  
Councilor Lonergan  Present 
Councilor McCallum  Present 
Councilor Morris  Present  
Councilor Ellsworth  Present 
Councilor Alonso Leon   Present 

 
Staff Present: City Administrator Derickson, City Attorney Shields, Interim Public Works 
Director Scott,  Economic and Development Director Hendryx,  Finance Director Shearer, 
Captain Garrett, Human Resource Director Hereford, Urban Renewal Manager Stowers, 
Communications Coordinator Horton, City Recorder Pierson 

 
0:00 ANNOUNCEMENTS 

City Hall and the Library will be closed on January 20 for Martin Luther King Jr. Day.  The 
Aquatic Center will be open normal hours.  
 

0:00 COMMUNITY/GOVERNMENT ORGANIZATIONS 
Chamber of Commerce – Harry Lee Kwai, newly appointed Executive Director, introduced 
himself to the City Council and informed them that the Distinguished Service Awards dinner 
will take place on March 14th.   
 

0:03 BUSINESS FROM THE PUBLIC  
Patricia Hyatt presented a letter to the Mayor and City Council asking them what is being 
done to get an Amtrak stop in Woodburn.  Mayor Figley stated that she is on the Corridor 
Forum and Woodburn is still on the radar for getting this stop. City Administrator Derickson 
stated that the City is advocating for the Amtrak stop.  

 
0:12 CONSENT AGENDA  

A. Woodburn City Council minutes of December 9, 2013 
B. Woodburn City Council Executive Session minutes of December 9, 2013 
C. Woodburn Planning Commission minutes of November 14, 2013 
D. Woodburn Park Board minutes of November 12, 2013  
McCallum/Cox adopt the Consent Agenda.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 

0:12 PUBLIC HEARING 
A Public Hearing to consider expansion of the Woodburn Enterprise Zone. Mayor Figley 
declared the hearing open at 7:24 pm for the purpose of hearing public input on the expansion 
of the Woodburn Enterprise Zone.  Economic and Development Director Hendryx provided a 
staff report.  Councilor Ellsworth asked Director Hendryx if this will have minimal impact on 

1



COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
JANUARY 13, 2014 

 
 

 
Page 2 - Council Meeting Minutes, January 13, 2014 

his work day and Director Hendryx answered yes, it would be minimal. Councilor Cox 
expressed concern for Director Hendryx, as a Woodburn City Employee, having to advocate 
for both Woodburn and Gervais and Director Hendryx answered that his job is to provide the 
public with facts and information and let the company make their decision based on the facts.  
Councilor McCallum asked if there was an opt-out provision for either side and was told no, 
that the agreement would be in place until 2020.  Susie Zwemke, City Administrator for the 
City of Gervais was introduced and stated that she is available for questions. Mayor Figley 
asked if there is already one employer who is looking to utilize the Enterprise Zone in Gervais 
and Ms. Zwemke answered yes.  No members of the public wished to speak in either support 
or opposition of the expansion of the Woodburn Enterprise Zone.  Mayor Figley declared the 
hearing closed at 7:42 pm. Councilor McCallum stated that he sees this as a positive thing and 
Councilor Lonergan concurred.  Councilor Cox stated that he is in support of this and believes 
it will help Gervais and won’t hurt Woodburn. Councilor Ellsworth stated that she believes 
that this will help Woodburn. Councilor Alonso Leon stated that this is a good way to support 
our neighbors and Councilor Morris concurred.   

 
0:34 COUNCIL BILL NO. 2942 -  A RESOLUTION REQUESTING THAT BUSINESS 

OREGON, AN AGENCY OF THE STATE OF OREGON, CHANGE THE 
BOUNDARY OF THE WOODBURN ENTERPRISE ZONE TO INCLUDE THE CITY 
OF GERVAIS AND THAT THE ZONE BE RENAMED THE WOODBURN-GERVAIS 
ENTERPRISE ZONE 

 McCallum introduced Council Bill 2942. Recorder Pierson read the bill by title only since 
there were no objections from the Council. On roll call vote for final passage, the bill passed 
unanimously.  Mayor Figley declared Council Bill No. 2942 duly passed.  

 
0:34 COUNCIL BILL NO. 2943 - AN ORDINANCE ENABLING THE FORMATION OF 

ECONOMIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICTS PURSUANT TO OREGON STATE LAW 
McCallum introduced Council Bill 2943.  Recorder Pierson read the two readings of the bill 
by title only since there were no objections from the Council.  Councilor Ellsworth stated that 
she believes this is a really good program and she wants to make sure we do it right up front 
so we don’t discourage participation.  On roll call vote for final passage, the bill passed 
unanimously.  Mayor Figley declared Council Bill No. 2943 duly passed. 
 

0:48  COUNCIL BILL NO. 2944 - AN ORDINANCE REPEALING ORDINANCE 1015 
(RELATING TO STREET DECORATIONS) AS PART OF THE ORDINANCE 
REVIEW/REVISION PROJECT INITIATED BY THE CITY COUNCIL 
McCallum introduced Council Bill 2944.  Recorder Pierson read the two readings of the bill 
by title only since there were no objections from the Council.  On roll call vote for final 
passage, the bill passed unanimously.  Mayor Figley declared Council Bill No. 2944 duly 
passed. 
 

0:50 COUNCIL BILL NO. 2945 - A RESOLUTION RENEWING AN 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH MARION COUNTY FOR THE 
COORDINATION OF PERMIT ISSUANCE AND INSPECTIONS AND 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR TO SIGN SAID AGREEMENT 

 McCallum introduced Council Bill 2945. Recorder Pierson read the bill by title only since 

2



COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
JANUARY 13, 2014 

 
 

 
Page 3 - Council Meeting Minutes, January 13, 2014 

there were no objections from the Council.  On roll call vote for final passage, the bill passed 
unanimously.  Mayor Figley declared Council Bill No. 2945 duly passed. 

 
0:53 PLANNING COMMISSION APPROVAL OF VARIANCE VAR 2013-01, LOCATED 

AT 498 BROADWAY STREET 
  Council declined to call this item up for review. 
 
0:54 CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 The City Administrator had nothing to report. 
 
1:25 MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS 
 Councilor Ellsworth thanked the people who take an active role in city government and stated 

that she appreciates hearing from people.  
 Councilor Cox concurred with Councilor Ellsworth.  
   
1:27 ADJOURNMENT 
            McCallum/Ellsworth…. meeting be adjourned.  The motion passed unanimously.   
            The meeting adjourned at 8:05 p.m. 

 
APPROVED                                                            
                      KATHRYN FIGLEY, MAYOR 

 
 
ATTEST                                                                               
               Heather Pierson, City Recorder 
               City of Woodburn, Oregon 

3



4



5



6



7



8



 

PPuubb

 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
The meeting was called to 

 

2. ROLL CALL 
Position I J.D. Mitcho
Position II Kristen Mat
Position III Nancy Kirk
Position IV Neal Hawes
Position V Ian Niktab
Position VI Phyllis McK

 Position VII  Vacant  
  

3. MINUTES – October 9, 2
Neal Hawes/JD Mitchoff

motion passed unanimousl
 

4. BUSINESS FROM THE 
 None. 

 

5. BOARD REPORT 
None. 

 

6. OLD BUSINESS 
None. 
 

7. NEW BUSINESS 
Kindle Lending Program

John presented an overvie
Kindle Paperwhite e-reade
was committed for the pur
on the Borrower Agreemen
 
Neal Hawes moved and 
Agreement as modified. C
eligible patrons; a 10-day 
that patrons not return the K

  

CCiittyy  ooff  WWooooddbbuurrnn  

bblliicc  LLiibbrraarryy  BBooaarrdd  MMiinnuutteess  

  
January 9, 2014 ● 6:30 p.m. 

led to order at 6:36 p.m. 

itchoff (12/17)     Present 
n Matthews (12/17)    Absent 
y Kirksey, President (12/17)   Present 
Hawes, Vice-President (12/15)   Present 
iktab (12/17)     Present 
is McKean (12/16)    Present 

, 2013 

choff – Motion to accept the minutes was offered and
mously. 

 THE PUBLIC 

gram – John Hunter 
verview of the library’s forthcoming Kindle Lending
readers were purchased by the Friends of the Libr
he purchase of e-books over the next year. John sou
eement which will be required from all participating p

 and JD Mitchoff seconded a motion to approve
Clarifications to the agreement include the additi

day loan period, a $1 per day overdue fine, and an 
n the Kindles in the book drop. 

 

ed and seconded. The 

ending Program. Five 
e Library and $1,700 
n sought board input 
ating patrons.  

prove the Borrower 
 addition of seniors as 
nd an explicit request 

9



Library Closing Procedures – John Hunter 
John informed the board that, in rare instances, patrons have become upset because the 
library offers limited services in the last few minutes of the day. This is due to the fact 
that library staff are also required to perform closing procedures, such as counting 
money, ensuring the library is empty, locking doors throughout the facility, and turning 
off lights. To better make patrons aware of this practice, John asked for board approval to 
post signs with the following language: “To ensure service, please be in line 5 minutes 
before library closing.” John indicated that he would supplement the signs by also 
providing a brief explanation of the situation at closing on the library website. 
 
Neal Hawes moved and Phyllis McKean seconded a motion to post the signs with the 
language as provided. The board further approved that the closing period be extended to 
10 minutes if 5 minutes proves to be insufficient. Neal Hawes also suggested adding a 
Russian translation to the sign.  
 
 

8. MANAGER REPORTS 
Library Statistics – October-December 2013 – John Hunter 
Quarterly statistics indicated relatively stable library usage. Circulation was up or down 
1-2% each month. However, the library performed better than CCRLS as a whole, which 
had a circulation decrease of 5.32% for the quarter. Library attendance was down 11% in 
November and 14% in December, most likely due to the exceptionally cold weather.  
 

Friends of the Library Report 

Neal Hawes indicated that the Friends met in December. As there was not a quorum, no 
business was conducted. 
 

9. FUTURE BOARD BUSINESS 
Next scheduled meeting is April 9, 2014 
 

10. ADJOURNMENT 
J.D. Mitchoff / Neal Hawes – Motion to adjourn meeting and seconded at 7:24  p.m. 

 

10



Woodburn Recreation & Park Board Workshop Minutes 
January 7, 2014 
5:30 – 8:30p.m. 

Workshop Minutes 
Page 1 

  
 
Call to Order 
The meeting began at 5:30 p.m. 
 
Present 
Position I Ricardo Rodriguez, Member (12/14)  Present       
Position II  Sofie Velasquez (12/14)   Present 
Position III  Joseph Nicoletti, Board Secretary (12/17) Present 
Position IV  Rosetta Wangerin, Board Chair (12/17) Present 
Position V  Chris Lassen, Member (12/17)  Present 
Position VI   Ardis Knauf (12/16)    Present 
Position VII  Gevin Gregory (12/16)   Present 
 
Staff present: Jim Row, Community Services Director; Stu Spence, Recreation Services Manager; 
Kristin Wierenga, Aquatics Supervisor 
  
Annual Review and Goal Setting 
Kristin and Stu provided a 2013 year in review presentation for the Aquatics and Recreation 
programs.  The Board then reviewed the following eight goals identified in the 2009 Parks and 
Recreation Master Plan: 
 
Goal 1:  Maximize the Planning Effort 
 
Goal 2:  Improve Marketing, Communications, and Credibility 
 
Goal 3:  Track Performance Measures 
   
Goal 4:  Strategically Increase Programming and Partnerships 
    
Goal 5:  Increase Cost Recovery and Funding  
 
Goal 6: Create a Cohesive Operations and Maintenance System for Recreation and Parks 
     
Goal 7:  Continue to Provide an Equitable Level of Service in Existing Parks and Facilities  
 
Goal 8:  Plan for Community Growth 
 
The Board concluded the meeting with a discussion of potential projects for 2014.  They agreed to 
rank the projects for discussion at the February meeting.   

 
 
 
______________________________  _________________________________ 
Joseph Nicoletti, Board Secretary    Jim Row, Community Services Director 
 
Date_________________    Date___________________                

11



Agenda Item 
 

 

Agenda Item Review: City Administrator __x____ City Attorney ___x___ Finance __x___ 

 January 27, 2014 
 
 
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council through City Administrator 
 
FROM: Jim Hendryx, Director of Economic & Development Services 
 
SUBJECT: Planning Commission approval of annexation case ANX 2013-01, 

located at 1225 Brown Street 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Adopt a Resolution setting the date for a public hearing on the proposed 
annexation. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The applicant requested annexation of a 1.1 acre parcel at the corner of Brown 
Street and Vine Avenue.  The property is designated Low Density Residential on 
the Comprehensive Plan Map.  The subject property is zoned Urban Transition 20 
by Marion County.  The site is currently vacant.  Abutting properties within the 
City are zoned Residential Single-Family (RS) and are designated Low Density 
Residential on the Comprehensive Plan Map. 
 
The Planning Commission conducted a public hearing on January 9, 2014, 
received testimony from staff and the applicant, and forwarded the matter to 
the Council with a unanimous recommendation of approval. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
None.   
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
This decision is anticipated to have no public sector financial impact.  The 
property can be served with existing public utilities, and improvements to Brown 
Street will be made by the property owner upon subdivision or partition.  System 
Development Charges, to cover improvements to public water, sewer, storm 
drain, and park systems, will be assessed when building permits are issued. 
 

12



Honorable Mayor and City Council 
January 27, 2014 
Page 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Comprehensive Plan Map showing the subject property 
 

13



Page 1- Council Bill No. 2946 
               Resolution No. 2040 
 
 

COUNCIL BILL NO. 2946 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2040 
 

A RESOLUTION CALLING FOR A PUBLIC HEARING ON THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 
PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1225 BROWN STREET AND IDENTIFIED ON MARION COUNTY 
TAX ASSESSOR’S MAPS AS TAX LOT 051W18C01000  

 
WHEREAS, Simon Molodih, property owner, requested that the subject property be 

annexed to the City of Woodburn; and  
 
WHEREAS, it is in the public interest to also annex the abutting portion of Brown 

Street; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Woodburn Planning Commission held a public hearing to consider 

the matter; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Woodburn Planning Commission forwarded the case to the Council 

with a unanimous recommendation of approval; NOW, THEREFORE, 
 
THE CITY OF WOODBURN RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  Pursuant to ORS 222.120, 7:00 p.m. on February 24, 2014 is declared to 

be the time set for public hearing before the Woodburn City Council on whether the 
City of Woodburn shall annex the property described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 

 
Section 2.  Pursuant to ORS 222.120, no election is required on this issue. 
 
Section 3.  Notice of said hearing shall be published once each week for two 

successive weeks prior to the day of hearing, in a newspaper of general circulation in 
the City, and notices of the hearing shall be posted in four public places in the City for a 
like period. 

 
 

Approved as to form:      
 City Attorney  Date 
 
 
 Approved:   
  Kathryn Figley, Mayor 
 

Passed by the Council   

14



Page 2- Council Bill No. 2946 
               Resolution No. 2040 
 
 

Submitted to the Mayor   

Approved by the Mayor   

Filed in the Office of the Recorder   
 
 
ATTEST:   

Heather Pierson 
City Recorder, City of Woodburn, Oregon 

15



16



17



18



Agenda Item 
 

 

Agenda Item Review: City Administrator ___x___ City Attorney ___x___ Finance __x___ 

               January 27, 2014 
 
 
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council through City Administrator 
 
FROM: Randy Scott, Interim Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT: Acceptance of a Public Utility Easement within the Memory Care 

Development at 2325 N. Boones Ferry Road, Woodburn, OR 97071 
(Tax Lot 051W07BD08300) 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That Council accepts the 16 foot wide Public Utility Easement for City water 
facilities granted by WMC Holding Company LLC, property owner of 2325 N. 
Boones Ferry Road, Woodburn, OR 97071 (Tax Lot 051W07BD08300). 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
A permanent public water line easement was required as a Public Works 
condition of building permit B13-003.  This waterline easement will create a 
looped water main for the City water system, providing better water distribution 
and water quality. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Public Utility Easement is a 16.0 feet wide Waterline Easement that is located 
within the new Memory Care Development at 2325 N. Boones Ferry Road. It 
provides a permanent easement and right-of-way to construct, reconstruct, 
operate, and maintain Water Mains, Service Lines and Appurtenances.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
There is no cost to the City for this Public Utility Easement since it was donated by 
the property owner as a condition to building permit B13-003. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A Copy of the properly signed public utility easement document is attached.  

19



20



21



22



23



Agenda Item 
 

 

Agenda Item Review: City Administrator __x____ City Attorney ___x___ Finance __x___ 

                 January 27, 2014 
 
 
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council through City Administrator 
 
FROM: Randy Scott, Interim Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT: Acceptance of a Public Utility Easement within the Memory Care 

Development at 2325 N. Boones Ferry Road, Woodburn, OR 97071 
(Tax Lot 051W07BD08300) 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That Council accepts the 11 foot wide Public Utility Easement for City water 
facilities granted by WMC Holding Company LLC, property owner of 2325 N. 
Boones Ferry Road, Woodburn, OR 97071 (Tax Lot 051W07BD08300). 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
A permanent public water line easement was required as a Public Works 
condition of building permit B13-003.  This waterline easement will create a 
looped water main for the City water system, providing better water distribution 
and water quality. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Public Utility Easement is an 11.0 feet wide Waterline Easement that is 
located along the frontage of the new Memory Care Development at 2325 N. 
Boones Ferry Road. It provides a permanent easement and right-of-way to 
construct, reconstruct, operate, and maintain Water Mains, Service Lines and 
Appurtenances.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
There is no cost to the City for this Public Utility Easement since it was donated by 
the property owner as a condition to building permit B13-003. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A Copy of the properly signed public utility easement document is attached.  

24



25



26



27



28


	Woodburn City Council minutes 
	Planning Commission Minutes
	Library Board minutes
	Woodburn Recreation & Park Board Workshop Minutes
	Planning Commission approval of annexation case ANX 2013-01,located at 1225 Brown Street
	Acceptance of a Public Utility Easement within the Memory CareDevelopment at 2325 N. Boones Ferry Road, Woodburn, OR 97071(Tax Lot 051W07BD08300)
	Acceptance of a Public Utility Easement within the Memory CareDevelopment at 2325 N. Boones Ferry Road, Woodburn, OR 97071(Tax Lot 051W07BD08300)



